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Vision
Awwal Modaraba Management Limited (AMML) will play a role
in the economic process and development of Pakiﬆan by
providing a range of advisory services and ﬁnancial support,
through Shariah compliant modes; to viable projects in high
growth, capital ﬆarved sectors of the economy.

Mission
Awwal Modaraba Management Limited (AMML) aims to be at
the vanguard of innovation in Modaraba management services, oﬀering the beﬆ solutions to our cuﬆomers, value to our
certiﬁcate holders and Modaraba inveﬆors, complemented
with a challenging, equal opportunity to our employees.
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Chairman’s Review
I am pleased to present my review as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Awwal Modaraba
Management Limited, the management company of KASB Modaraba.
Country’s GDP grew by 3.9% in FY2021 according to data released in the Monetary Policy
Statement (MPS) State Bank of Pakiﬆan (SBP) which is considerably higher than projected by
International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the World Bank. This was also acknowledged by IMF in the
recently released World Economic Update. SBP expects economic growth at around 4-5% this
year. Inﬂation has reduced on an year to year basis in recent months to 9.7% in June 2021 and is
expected to clock around 7-9% this year.
The aforementioned positive economic development have occurred as a result of several measures
taken by the Government of Pakiﬆan (GoP) and SBP. Pakiﬆan’s National Assembly passed a
growth oriented budget for 2021-2022 on June 29, 2021. SBP has maintained the policy rate at 7%
per annum, unchanged since June 2020 as economy remains vulnerable under the fourth wave of
Covid-19 and on the back of inﬂation being under check. Overall, SBP’s support to various economic sectors amounted to approximately PKR two trillion inclusive of intereﬆ rate reduction, loan
deferrals and reschedulings, and support for new inveﬆment / BMR.
Imports are expected to grow with increase in economic activity and rebound in global commodity
prices. SBP expects that the current account deﬁcit will be contained in a suﬆainable range of 2–3%
of GDP in FY2022 as a result of policy measures and positive export outlook. Foreign exchange
reserves position is expected to remain ﬆrong with external support including ﬁnancial assiﬆance
and loan deferrals.
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The Modaraba has been able to maintain proﬁtable position in FY2021 and maintain asset quality
in challenging times. Income has declined on an year to year basis as expected due to lower
intereﬆ rate scenario and conservative underwriting of new exposures. While economic activity is
recovering, the diﬆressed asset segment is ﬆill in a vulnerable situation. Further, there will be a
signiﬁcant impact from withdrawal of tax exemption on modaraba sector in the current budget on
diﬆribution of 90% or more dividend in an year. From next year onwards, modaraba income will be
taxed on normal corporate rates.
The Board of Directors of the management company comprises of six members, including two
Independent Non-Executive Directors and one female Director. The Board performs its ﬆatutory
duties and fulﬁls its responsibilities by ensuring that the Modaraba has a capable leadership and an
eﬀective executive management team. The board, on quarterly basis, undertakes an overall review
of business risks to ensure that Management maintains a sound syﬆem of risk identiﬁcation, risk
management and related syﬆemic internal controls to safeguard assets, resources, reputation and
intereﬆ of the company and its ﬆakeholders.
On behalf of the Board, I take this opportunity to thank all our cuﬆomers, inveﬆors, regulators and
other ﬆakeholders for placing their truﬆ in the Modaraba.

Khalid Aziz Mirza
Chairman
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Dated: 27 Auguﬆ 2021

directors’ report
The Board of Directors of Awwal Modaraba Management Limited, the management company of KASB Modaraba, is pleased
to present the Directors’ Report together with Audited Financial Statements of KASB Modaraba for the year ended 30 June
2021.
Economy
The Government of Pakiﬆan (GoP) and the regulators have been taking several measures for the revival of the economy
impacted by the pandemic which are reﬂected in the country’s economic growth and in performance of the ﬆock exchange.
The National Assembly passed the country’s 2021-2022 budget on June 29, 2021 which is a growth-oriented budget and
GoP has introduced several incentive schemes to support and booﬆ economic activity, including for conﬆruction sector and
allied induﬆries. The State Bank of Pakiﬆan (SBP) has also maintained the policy rate at 7% per annum since June 2020,
and the subsidized ﬁnancing schemes including the Long Term Financing Facility (LTFF) and Temporary Economic Relief
Facility have facilitated capital inveﬆments. Year-on-year inﬂation rate has been on a declining trend in recent months which
has facilitated the ease in monetary policy. Notably, diﬀerent measures taken by SBP has provided signiﬁcant booﬆ to
Fintech in the paﬆ two years which has facilitated economic activity in the country particularly during covid-19 lockdowns.
Earlier in April 2021, the World Bank had projected GDP growth rate of 1.3% for FY2021 in the Pakiﬆan Development
Update, recovering to 4% in FY2022 while GDP growth clocked at 3.9% in FY2021. International Monetary Fund (IMF) has
acknowledged Pakiﬆan’s ﬆronger economic activity in the recently issued World Economic Update. Pakiﬆan has received
USD 2 billion so far under the IMF program since May 2019. Tough economic measures have been taken in line with the
program including increase in electricity tariﬀ and withdrawal of income tax exemptions of nearly PKR 140 billion along with
ﬆructural reforms of the Central Bank.
The risk of pandemic ﬆill exiﬆs with the country in the grip of the fourth wave of Covid-19 with intermittent lockdowns
aﬀecting economic activity. Further, tax exemption on income of Modaraba sector on declaration of 90% and above dividend
has been withdrawn which will be a signiﬁcant hit on proﬁtability of the Modaraba sector.
Financial Performance
Operating Results

Balance Sheet
Certiﬁcate capital
Total equity
Diminishing Musharaka
Inveﬆment – equities/Sukuk/Modaraba term deposit

30 June 2021
(Rupees ‘000’)

30 June 2020
(Rupees ‘000’)

480,665
168,045
31,979
56,278

480,665
138,400
18,578
5,681

Proﬁt & Loss
Revenue
Operating expenses
Proﬁt/ (loss) before Management Fee
Net proﬁt for the year

60,052
21,160
33,087
29,203

12,180
28,689
(102,921)
(102,921)

Appropriations
Proﬁt diﬆribution @ 4.80% (2020: Nil)
Statutory reserve
Un-appropriated proﬁt carried forward
Earnings per certiﬁcate

23,072
5,841
23,362
0.61

Nil
Nil
(102,921)
(2.14)

During the year under review, the management took concrete ﬆeps to ﬆreamline and integrate operations with the parent
company and ﬆrengthen controls and recovery of old nonperforming loans. Fresh exposures are being taken on a conservative basis with the view to ensure asset quality and suﬆain operations of the Modaraba. Additionally, Pak BruneiInveﬆment
Company (PBIC) also injected callable convertible Musharaka facility of PKR 50 million in the Modaraba on January 28,
2021 in line with its commitment to SECP in anticipation of implementation of new business plan for revival of Modaraba
activity. Due to the above measures, the Modaraba is operating with ample liquidity.
Withdrawal of tax exemption on income of the Modaraba on declaration of 90% and above dividend is a major setback. We
are now working on new tax eﬃcient business plans in consultation with SECP in this new scenario.
The outﬆanding portfolio amounted to PKR 31.80 million on June 30, 2021 compared to PKR 18.58 million at the end of the
previous year. Of the excess liquidity of PKR 194.82 million, approx. PKR 20.71 million was placed in sukuks while PKR 27
million was placed in Modaraba Term deposits to maximize returns, remaining maintained in bank balances. However,
overall revenues slightly reduced to 3.18 million from PKR 3.49 million during previous year due to lower prevailing mark-up
rates. Total expenses for the period were contained at PKR 21.16 million. With reversal of provisions of PKR 44.27 million,
the Modaraba poﬆed proﬁt before tax for the period at PKR 29.2 million againﬆ loss of PKR 102.92 million in corresponding
period laﬆ year.
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Financial snapshot

directors’ report
Proﬁt Diﬆribution
The Board in its meeting held on 27 Auguﬆ 2021 has approved cash dividend of Re. 0.48 (4.80%) per certiﬁcate of Rs. 10
each, subject to deduction of zakat and tax at source where applicable, for the year ended 30 June 2021.
To comply with Modaraba Regulations 2021, the Board of Directors has transferred Rs. 5.84 million to ﬆatutory reserve. As
per the Regulations the Modaraba is required to transfer not less than 20% and not more than 50% of the Modaraba’s after
tax proﬁt to ﬆatutory reserve till such time that the reserve equals 100% of the paid-up capital. Subsequently, a sum not less
than 5% and not more than 20% of its after tax proﬁt is to be transferred to such reserve.
Governance & Shariah Compliance
The Board of Directors is committed to ensure compliance with various requirements of the Pakiﬆan Stock Exchange and
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakiﬆan (SECP). The Modaraba is in compliance with the requirements of the
Liﬆed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, relevant for the year ended 30 June 2021.
Shariah Advisor is involved from the outset to ensure that prospective clients’ business and proposed transaction ﬆructure
are in line with Shariah principles. Strong emphasis is placed on good governance and implementation of all policies in
spirit. The Board of Directors comprise independent directors to ensure external oversight.
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:
• The ﬁnancial ﬆatements, prepared by the management of the Modaraba, present fairly its ﬆate of aﬀairs, the result of its
operations, cash ﬂows and changes in equity.
• Proper books of account of the Modaraba have been maintained.
• Appropriate accounting policies have been consiﬆently applied in preparation of ﬁnancial ﬆatements and accounting
eﬆimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to Modarabas in Pakiﬆan, have been followed in preparation
of ﬁnancial ﬆatements.
• The syﬆem of internal control is sound in design and has been eﬀectively implemented and monitored.
• There are no signiﬁcant doubts upon the Modaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern.
• There has been no material departure from the beﬆ practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the liﬆing
regulations.
• There are no ﬆatutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outﬆanding as on 30 June
2021 except for those disclosed in the ﬁnancial ﬆatements.
• During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each director was as
follows:
Name of Director
Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar
Ms. Ayesha Aziz
Mr. Abdul Jaleel Shaikh
Mr. Ahmed Ateeq
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Mr. Karim Hatim (CEO)

No. of Meetings attended
4
4
4
4
4
4

Change in Directors
Mr. Ahmed Ateeq resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with eﬀect from June 30, 2021 and Mr. Saiyid
Najam Rizvi was nominated on the Board of the Company by Pak Brunei Inveﬆment Company (Holding Company of
Management Company) in place of Mr. Ahmed Ateeq with eﬀect from July 01, 2021.
The Board has formed an Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.
The Committee comprises of four members. The head of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director. The Committee
reviews the periodic ﬁnancial ﬆatements and examines the adequacy of ﬁnancial policies and practices to ensure that an
eﬃcient and ﬆrong syﬆem of internal control is in place. The Committee also reviews the audit reports issued by the
Internal Audit Department. The Audit Committee is also responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors the
appointment of external auditors.
•
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During the year under review, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance
by each member was as follows:

directors’ report
Name of Member
Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar

No. of Meetings attended
4

Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza

4

Mr. Abdul Jaleel Shaikh

4

Mr. Ahmed Ateeq
•
•
•
•

4
One meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) was held to ﬁnalize the recommendation
for the yearly ﬆaﬀ compensation amounts.
The pattern of holding of certiﬁcates by the certiﬁcate-holders is included in this annual report.
The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, their spouses and minor children did not carry out any transaction in
the certiﬁcates of Modaraba during the year under review.
The value of inveﬆments of the gratuity fund is Rs. 1,382,916. The Modaraba recorded Rs. 790,840 for the gratuity up
to 30 June 2021.

The Board of Directors
The total number of directors are 6 including CEO as per the following:
a. Male: 5
b. Female: 1
The composition of Board is as follows:

Category
Independent Directors
Other Non-Executive Directors
Chief Executive Oﬀicer

Names
Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar
Ms. Ayesha Aziz
Mr. Abdul Jaleel Shaikh
Mr. Saiyid Najam Rizvi
Mr. Karim Ha�m

Director’s Remuneration
The remuneration of a Director for attending meetings of the Board or any Committee of the Board is determined under the
Director’s Compensation Policy adopted by Awwal Modaraba Management Limited. Under the said policy, an independent
director is entitled to receive the prescribed fee as determined by the Board of Directors only for attending the Board
Meeting. Further, the nominee directors / Chief Executive Oﬃcer / any other director in whole time remunerated service
with the Company are not entitled to any payment for attending meetings of the Board or any Committee of the Board.
However, all the directors are entitled to be paid all traveling, hotel and other expenses incurred by them in attending and
returning from meetings of the Directors or any committee of Directors or General Meeting of the company in connection
with the business of the Company.
Auditors
On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the present auditors M/s Grant Thornton Anjum
Rahman Chartered Accountants, being eligible for appointment and upon their consent to act as auditors, have been
appointed as external auditors of the Modaraba for the year ending 30 June 2022. However, their appointment will be
subject to the approval of Regiﬆrar of Modaraba Companies and Modarabas.

The Modaraba continues to seek guidance from its Shari’ah Advisor, M/s Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors as and when required
to ensure full compliance to Shari’ah Audit mechanism developed in consultation with Regiﬆrar Modaraba. The internal
audit department has also been trained to handle the day-to-day aﬀairs of the Modaraba ensuring complete adherence to
Shari’ah policies and principles. The Shari’ah Advisor Report issued for the aﬀairs of the Modaraba for the year ended 30
June 2021 is attached in the Annual Financial Statements.
Acknowledgments
The Board of Directors would like to acknowledges and appreciate SECP and Regiﬆrar Modaraba for their continuous
guidance and support. Also, we would like to avail this opportunity to thank our cuﬆomers and inveﬆors for placing their
truﬆ in the Modaraba.
On behalf of the Board

Karim Hatim
Chief Executive
Date: 27 Auguﬆ 2021

Abdul Jaleel Shaikh
Director
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Total assets
Musharaka Finance
Murabaha Finance
Modaraba Finance
Diminishing Musharaka
Ijarah Assets
Equity
Currents Assets
Current Liabilities
Income
Taxation
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax
Dividend (Rs.)
EPS (Rs.)

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
-------------------------------Rupees in Thousand----------------------------------247,390
154,407
270,584
375,598
599,707
901,245
3,100
11,300
12,900
14,100
83,796
125,580
150,045
267,365
112
50,960
53,746
31,979
18,578
41,908
95,184
153,209
316,083
3,580
3,580
9,097
20,265
32,493
52,765
168,757
138,400
240,708
274,947
391,456
389,033
222,358
141,820
236,436
277,741
488,336
591,031
77,250
12,237
23,005
79,115
137,637
295,207
57,168
12,849
35,248
58,118
110,830
166,063
29,203
(102,921)
(34,240)
(114,209)
4,570
8,244
0.07
0.08
0.61
(2.14)
(0.71)
(2.38)
0.10
0.17

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Year ended June 30, 2021

This ﬆatement is being presented to comply with Liﬆed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
Regardless of the fact that Awwal Modaraba Management Limited (‘AMML’ or ‘the company’), the Management Company of
KASB Modaraba, is an unliﬆed public limited company, the Board of Directors of the Management Company is pleased to
conﬁrm that the Code is being complied with in all material respects (pertaining to the operations of the Modaraba).
AMML has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are six (6) as per the following,a. Male:
b. Female:

05
01

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

Category
Independent Directors
Non-Execu�ve Directors
Executive Directors
Female Director

Names
Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar
Ms. Ayesha Aziz
Mr. Abdul Jaleel Shaikh
Mr. Saiyid Najam Rizvi
Mr. Karim Ha�m (Chief Execu�ve Oﬃcer)
Ms. Ayesha Aziz

3. The directors have conﬁrmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven liﬆed companies, including
this company.
4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate ﬆeps have been taken to disseminate
it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission ﬆatement, overall corporate ﬆrategy and signiﬁcant policies of the company.
The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the signiﬁcant policies along with their date of approval or
updating is maintained by the company.
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and Liﬆed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board
for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.
8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and
these Regulations.
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9. The Board meets the criteria of requirement of Directors’ Training program.
10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Oﬃcer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations;
11. Chief Financial Oﬃcer and Chief Executive oﬃcer duly endorsed the ﬁnancial ﬆatements before approval of the Board;
12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Commi�ee

HR and Remuneration Committee
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Mr. Shahid Ghaﬀar (Chairman)
Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Abdul Jaleel Shaikh
Mr. Saiyid Najam Rizvi
Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza (Chairman)
Ms. Ayesha Aziz
Mr. Karim Ha�m

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
Year ended June 30, 2021
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance;
14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following,S. No.

Name of the Committee

Frequency of the meetings held during the year

1.

Audit Committee

Quarterly

2.

HR and Remuneration Committee

Yearly

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to the internal audit department of the parent company (Pak
Brunei Inveﬆment Company Limited) who is considered suitably qualiﬁed and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.
16. The ﬆatutory auditors of the company have conﬁrmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review program of the Inﬆitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakiﬆan and regiﬆered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakiﬆan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the Inﬆitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakiﬆan and that they and the partners of the
ﬁrm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive oﬃcer, chief ﬁnancial oﬃcer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;
17. The ﬆatutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except
in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have conﬁrmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;
18. We conﬁrm that all requirements of regulations 3, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

Dated: 27 Auguﬆ 2021
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Khalid Aziz Mirza
Chairman
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AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT ON COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 june 2021

Note

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

Current assets
Cash and bank balances
Short term investment
Modaraba term deposit
Modaraba finance
Musharaka finance
Murabaha finance
Current portion of long term diminishing musharaka finance
Receivable against sale of agricultural produce
Ijarah rentals receivable
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Property acquired in satisfaction of financing facility

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

147,114,654
29,277,745
27,000,000
10,630,132
8,335,114
222,357,645

71,872,499
5,680,702
11,123,671
6,059,869
47,082,936
141,819,677

21,348,645
3,579,900
103,666
25,032,211

7,453,970
8,333
3,579,900
1,545,071
12,587,274

247,389,856

154,406,951

1,315,000
50,000,000
3,579,900
13,776,888
5,762,187
2,815,955

1,315,000
3,579,900
4,508,253
2,834,156

77,249,930

12,237,309

Non-current assets
Long-term diminishing musharaka finance
Long term advances
Ijarah assets
Fixed assets - owned

11
16
17

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Redeemable capital - participatory and unsecured
Musharaka finance
Security deposit
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Financial charges payable to PBICL
Unclaimed profit distribution

18
19
20

Non-current liabilities
21

Deferred liabilities - staff gratuity
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

1,382,916

3,770,020

78,632,846

16,007,329

168,757,010

138,399,622

500,000,000

500,000,000

480,664,800
(303,005,573)
(9,614,657)

480,664,800
(326,809,916)
(15,455,262)
138,399,622

REPRESENTED BY
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
50,000,000 (June 30, 2020 : 50,000,000) certificates of Rs. 10/- each
22

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Revenue reserve
Capital reserve

168,044,570
712,440

Surplus on revaluation of investments

168,757,010

TOTAL CERTIFICATE HOLDERS' EQUITY
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

138,399,622
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The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements
For Awwal Mudaraba Management Limited
(Management Company)
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Authorized certificate capital

profit and loss account

for the year ended 30 june 2021
Note

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

Income from:
Diminishing musharaka finance
Murabaha finance
Dividend on shares

Financial charges
Depreciation on assets under ijarah arrangements

Other income
Unrealized gain / (loss) on investment - at FVTPL
Reversal of provison against murabaha finance
Reversal of provison against diminishing musharaka
Provision / suspension against potential losses - murabaha finance
Impairment of ijarah asset
Provision for doubtful receivable against sale of agriculture produce
Administrative and operating expenses

Management Company's remuneration
Sales tax on Management Company's remuneration
Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund
Profit / (Loss) before taxation
Taxation
Net Profit / (loss) for the year
Earning / (Loss) per certificate - basic and diluted

24
16.1

25

26

27
28

3,048,145
132,786

3,289,442
90,010
111,630

3,180,931

3,491,082

(5,805,271)
-

(433,121)
(1,379,382)

(5,805,271)

(1,812,503)

(2,624,340)

1,678,579

9,718,048
2,884,603
38,426,119
5,842,668
(21,160,073)

5,917,680
(669,479)
3,440,000
(72,808,617)
(4,138,125)
(7,651,449)
(28,689,456)

33,087,025

(102,920,867)

(2,920,302)
(379,639)
(584,060)
(3,884,001)
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-

29,203,024

(102,920,867)

29

29,203,024

(102,920,867)

30

0.61

(2.14)

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial ﬆatements

For Awwal Mudaraba Management Limited
(Management Company)
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statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 june 2021

Note

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

Net Profit / (loss) for the year

29,203,024

(102,920,867)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to profit and
loss account
Unrealized gain on remeasurement of sukuk certificates

6.3

712,440

-

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit and
loss account
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans

21.7

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

441,924
30,357,388

612,406
(102,308,461)

For Awwal Mudaraba Management Limited
(Management Company)
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The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial ﬆatements

cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 june 2021
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------29,203,024

(102,920,867)

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation for the year
Financial charges
Amortisation - intangible assets
Impairment for the year
Unrealized gain / (loss) on investment - at FVTPL
Provisions for the year against doubtful receivable
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Provision against gratuity
Decrease / (increase) in assets
Musharaka finance
Murabaha finance
Diminishing musharaka finance
Modaraba term deposit receipt
Ijarah rentals receivable
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Property acquired in satisfaction of financing facility
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Unclaimed profit distribution

683,707
5,805,271
(2,884,603)
(1,716,302)
790,840

2,249,197
433,121
69,137
7,353,775
669,479
77,920,066
1,076,197

31,881,936

(13,149,895)

(13,401,136)
(27,000,000)
(1,197,241)
47,082,936

3,100,000
13,527,538
23,330,731
52,003
9,202,715
-

5,484,559

49,212,987

9,268,635
(18,201)

(1,681,437)
-

9,250,434

(1,681,437)

Financial charges paid
Tax paid
Staff gratuity paid

(43,083)
(1,069,671)
(2,736,020)
(3,848,774)

(1,089,472)

Net cash generated from operating activities

42,768,155

33,292,181

(433,121)
(572,625)
(83,726)
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CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Investments made during the year

2,474,000
(20,000,000)

-

Net cash used in investing activities

(17,526,000)

-

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Term Financing repaid
Musharaka finance
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

50,000,000
50,000,000

(12,566,727)
(12,566,727)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

75,242,155
71,872,499

20,725,455
51,147,044

147,114,653

71,872,499

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 37 form an integral part of these ﬁnancial ﬆatements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 june 2021

Capi tal r eser v es

R ev enue r eser v e

Discount on
Statutory
Accumulated
Issuance of
Total
reserve
losses
certificates
-------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------

Certificate
capital

480,664,800

Net loss for the year

-

Other comprehensive income
Balance as at June 30, 2020

(98,960,400)
-

480,664,800

83,505,138
-

(98,960,400)

83,505,138

(224,501,454)

240,708,084

(102,920,867)

(102,920,867)

612,406
(326,809,916)

612,406
138,399,622

Net Profit for the year

-

-

-

29,203,024

29,203,024

Other comprehensive income

-

-

-

441,924

441,924

Transfer to statutory reserve
Balance as at June 30, 2021

480,664,800

(98,960,400)

5,840,605

(5,840,605)

89,345,743

(303,005,573)

168,044,570

For Awwal Mudaraba Management Limited
(Management Company)
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Balance as at June 30, 2019

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 june 2021
1.

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
KASB Modaraba (the Modaraba) was formed under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the rules framed thereunder and was managed by KASB Inveﬆ (Private) Limited (the
Management Company) KIPL, a company incorporated in Pakiﬆan.
The Regiﬆrar (Modarabas), with the approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakiﬆan, vide order
dated April 03, 2019 appointed Adminiﬆrator for the Modaraba to take over and manage the aﬀair of the Modaraba
in place of KIPL (Management Company). As per terms of the order, all the powers and duties of the Modaraba
Management Company as well as those of its Board of Directors assumed by the Adminiﬆrator. The term of the
Adminiﬆrator, for holding the modaraba oﬃce, was initially for the period of six months which was gradually
enhanced till February 03, 2020 as directed by the SECP.
The Regiﬆrar (Modarabas), with the approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakiﬆan, vide order
dated January 31, 2020 appointed Awwal Modaraba Management Limited (AMML) to take over and manage the
aﬀair of the Modaraba. AMML has taken over the management and adminiﬆrative control of KASB Modaraba
eﬀective from February 03, 2020.
The regiﬆered oﬃce of KASB Modaraba is situated at 3rd ﬂoor, Horizon Viﬆa, Plot No. Commercial 10, Block No.
4, Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi. The Modaraba is a multipurpose perpetual modaraba and is primarily engaged
in ijarah ﬁnancing, musharaka ﬁnancing, murabaha ﬁnancing, modaraba ﬁnancing, diminishing musharaka and
inveﬆing in sukuk bonds, mutual funds and liﬆed securities. The Modaraba is liﬆed on the Pakiﬆan Stock
Exchange.

2.
2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
-

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Boards (IASB) as notiﬁed under the Companies Act 2017;

-

Provisions and directions issued under the Companies Act 2017;

-

Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba Rules, 1981 and Modaraba Regulations 2021 ; and

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Inﬆitute of Chartered Accountants of Pakiﬆan as
notiﬁed under the Companies Act 2017.
Wherever provisions and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981,
Modaraba Regulations 2021 and IFAS diﬀer from IFRS Standards, the provision and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the
Modaraba Companies and the Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations 2021 and IFAS have been followed.
2.2

Basis of measurement
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These ﬁnancial ﬆatements have been prepared on the hiﬆorical coﬆ basis, except for inveﬆments at FVTPL and
FVOCI carried at fair value and certain ﬆaﬀ retirement beneﬁts that are carried at present value of deﬁned beneﬁt
obligation.
These ﬁnancial ﬆatements has been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cashﬂow
information.
2.3

Functional and presentation currency
These ﬁnancial ﬆatements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is Modaraba's functional and presentation currency.

2.4

Signiﬁcant accounting eﬆimates and judgements
In preparing these ﬁnancial ﬆatements management has made judgements, eﬆimates and assumptions that aﬀect
the application of the Modaraba's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may diﬀer from these eﬆimates. Eﬆimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to eﬆimates are recognised prospectively. Information about judgements made in
applying accounting policies that have the moﬆ signiﬁcant eﬀects on the amounts recognized in the ﬁnancial
ﬆatements and information about assumptions and eﬆimation uncertainty that have a signiﬁcant risk of resulting in
a material adjuﬆment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year are included in the following
notes:
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notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 june 2021

i) Classiﬁcation of ﬁnancial inﬆruments (note 4.4)
ii) Provision for non-performing ﬁnances and other impairment (note 4.13)
iii) Provision for taxation (note 4.9 and 29).
iv) Accounting for ﬆaﬀ retirement beneﬁts (note 4.12 and 21)
v) Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of ﬁxed assets and ijarah assets (note 4.1, 16
and 17).
3.
3.1

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published ﬆandards that may be relevant to the
company and adopted in the current year
There is no ﬆandard, amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which became eﬀective during the current year.

3.2

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published ﬆandards that may be relevant but not yet
eﬀective and not early adopted by the Company
The following new ﬆandards, amendments to published ﬆandards and interpretations would be eﬀective from the
dates mentioned below againﬆ the respective ﬆandard or interpretation.

Standard or Interpretation
IBOR Reform and its Eﬀects on Financial Reporting—Phase 2
"Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ Teﬆ for Derecognition of Financial
Liabilities (Amendment to IFRS 9)"
"Onerous Contracts—Coﬆ of Fulﬁlling a
Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)"
"Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use (Amendments to IAS 16)"
Subsidiary as a Firﬆ-time Adopter (Amendment to IFRS 1)
Taxation in Fair Value Measurements (Amendment to IAS 41)
Updating a Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)
Classiﬁcation of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)
"Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)"
Deﬁnition of Accounting Eﬆimates (Amendments to IAS 8)
Disclosure Initiative — Accounting Policies

Eﬀective Date
"(Annual periods beginning
on or after)"
January 1, 2021
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the
published ﬆandards on the ﬁnancial ﬆatements of the Company.
Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published ﬆandards that are not yet notiﬁed by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakiﬆan (SECP)
Following new ﬆandards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet
to be notiﬁed by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakiﬆan.

Standard or Interpretation
IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 1 'Firﬆ-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards'

Eﬀective Date
"(Annual periods beginning
on or after)"
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023

During the year, SECP vide S.R.O. 800 (I)/2021, has modiﬁed the eﬀective date for applicability of IFRS 9 - Financial
Inﬆruments in place of International Accounting Standard 39 (Financial Inﬆruments: Recognition and Measurement) for Non-Banking Finance Companies and Modarabas, as “Reporting period / year ending on or after June 30,
2022 (earlier application is permitted)”.
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3.3

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 june 2021
4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Fixed Assets - Tangible
Owned assets
Assets are ﬆated at coﬆ less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Coﬆ includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent coﬆs are included in the assets'
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
beneﬁts associated with the item will ﬂow to the Modaraba and the coﬆ of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the proﬁt and loss account during the period in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation is charged to income applying the ﬆraight-line method whereby the coﬆ of an asset is written-oﬀ over
its eﬆimated useful life. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the asset is available for use and on
disposals up to the month preceding the month of disposal.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to income as and when incurred.
The carrying values are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumﬆances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable.
Ijarah assets
Ijarah assets are ﬆated at coﬆ less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
charged to income applying the ﬆraight line method whereby the coﬆ of an asset less salvage value is written oﬀ
over the lease period, which is considered to be the eﬆimated useful life of the asset. In respect of additions and
disposals during the year, depreciation is charged on monthly basis from the date of commencement of lease. While
no depreciation is charged in the month of maturity / termination.
Gain or loss on disposal of assets, if any, is recognized as and when incurred.
The carrying values are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumﬆances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

4.2

Intangible assets
Intangible assets having a ﬁnite useful life are ﬆated at coﬆ less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Subsequent coﬆs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only where it is probable that the future economic beneﬁts associated with the asset will ﬂow
to the Modaraba and the coﬆ of item can be measured reliably. Amortisation is charged to income using the ﬆraight
line method after taking into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and amortisation method
are reviewed and adjuﬆed, as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. Amortisation is charged from the month the
asset is available for use while in the case of assets disposed of, it is charged till the month preceding the month of
disposal.
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Intangible assets having an indeﬁnite useful life are ﬆated at coﬆ less accumulated impairment losses, if any. These
assets are not amortised as they are expected to have an indeﬁnite life and are marketable.
Gain and loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any, are taken to the proﬁt and loss account.
The carrying values are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumﬆances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable.
4.3

Cash and cash equivalents
These comprise cash in hand and balances with banks in current and saving accounts.

4.4

Financial Inﬆruments
Initial measurement of ﬁnancial asset;
The Modaraba classiﬁes its ﬁnancial assets into following three categories:
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-

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
fair value through proﬁt or loss (FVTPL); and
measured at amortised coﬆ.

A ﬁnancial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction coﬆs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of ﬁnancial assets:
Debt inveﬆments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Intereﬆ / markup income calculated using the eﬀective
intereﬆ method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income ﬆatement. All other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassiﬁed to income ﬆatement.
Equity inveﬆments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in income ﬆatement
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the coﬆ of the inveﬆment. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI and are never reclassiﬁed to income ﬆatement.
Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any intereﬆ / markup or
dividend income, are recognised in income ﬆatement.
Financial assets at amortised coﬆ
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised coﬆ using the eﬀective intereﬆ method. The amortised coﬆ
is reduced by impairment losses. Intereﬆ / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in proﬁt and loss account.
Derecognition of Financial Assets
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash ﬂows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred.

All non-derivative ﬁnancial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Modaraba becomes
party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative ﬁnancial assets comprises inveﬆments, loans and
receivables that are ﬁnancial assets with ﬁxed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and
includes diminishing musharakah ﬁnance, ijarah rentals, morabaha receivable, modaraba ﬁnance, modaraba term
deposit, inveﬆment in sukuk, long term loans, accruals, prepayments, advances and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalent. The Modaraba derecognises the ﬁnancial assets when the contractual rights to the cash ﬂows
from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash ﬂows in a transaction in which
subﬆantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the ﬁnancial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor
retain subﬆantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.
4.5

Regular way contracts
All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame eﬆablished by regulation or market
convention such as 'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the
Modaraba commits to purchase or sell the assets.

4.6

Impairment
Financial assets
The Modaraba recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of ﬁnancial assets
measured at amortised coﬆ, except in the case of calculation of impairment provision on ﬁnancial assets where the
requirements of the Prudential Regulations for Modaraba prevails. The Modarba measures loss allowances at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances which are measured at 12 months
expected credit losses. Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on these
balances.
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Non-derivative ﬁnancial assets

notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 june 2021
Non-ﬁnancial assets
The carrying amounts of the Modaraba's non-ﬁnancial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exiﬆs, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher
of value in use and fair value less coﬆs to sell, is eﬆimated. In assessing value in use, the eﬆimated future cash
ﬂows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reﬂects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks speciﬁc to the asset. For the purpose of impairment teﬆing, assets that cannot
be teﬆed individually are grouped together into the smalleﬆ group of assets that generates cash inﬂows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inﬂows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment
loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the proﬁt and loss account.
Financial assets classiﬁed under Islamic Financial Accounting Standards
In case of assets classiﬁed under Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, the assets shall be reviewed and
provided for according to the time based criteria mentioned in the Modaraba Regulations 2021.
Oﬀsetting of ﬁnancial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities
Financial assets and ﬁnancial liabilities are oﬀset and the net amount is reported in the ﬁnancial ﬆatements only
when the Modaraba has a legally enforceable right to oﬀset and the Modaraba intends to either settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and
liabilities are also oﬀset and the net amount is reported in the ﬁnancial ﬆatements only when permitted by the
accounting and reporting ﬆandards as applicable in Pakiﬆan.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Modaraba becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include musharaka ﬁnance, mark-up bearing borrowings and
trade and other payables. The Modaraba derecognises the ﬁnancial liabilities when contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability other than at fair value through proﬁt or loss are initially
measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction coﬆ. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised coﬆ using eﬀective intereﬆ rate method.
4.7

Ijarah rentals , murabaha ﬁnance, musharaka ﬁnance, diminishing musharaka ﬁnance and modaraba
ﬁnance
Ijarah rentals receivables, murabaha ﬁnance, musharaka ﬁnance, diminishing musharaka ﬁnance and modaraba
ﬁnance receivables are ﬆated net of provisions and suspense income. Provision is recognised for non performing
receivables in accordance with Modaraba Regulations 2021. Receivables that becomes irrecoverable are written
oﬀ.

4.8

Earnings per certiﬁcate
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The Modaraba presents basic and diluted earnings / loss per certiﬁcate for its certiﬁcate holders. Basic earnings /
loss per certiﬁcate is calculated by dividing the proﬁt or loss attributable to the certiﬁcate holders of the Modaraba
by the weighted average number of certiﬁcates outﬆanding during the year. Diluted earning per certiﬁcate is
determined by adjuﬆing the proﬁt or loss attributable to ordinary certiﬁcate holders and the weighted average
number of ordinary certiﬁcates outﬆanding for the eﬀects of all dilutive potential ordinary certiﬁcates.
4.9

Taxation
Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any. The income of non-trading modarabas is
exempt from tax provided that not less than 90% of their proﬁts for the year as reduced by amount transferred to
amandatory reserve as required under the provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) are diﬆributed to the certiﬁcate holders.
The tax exemption by virtue of Clause 100 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has
been withdrawn through an amendment dated March 21, 2021 which is subsequently adopted in Finance Act, 2021.
But a new section 242 has been added in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act, 2021 by virtue of
which, the Modaraba may avail the exemption till June 30, 2021 subject to the fullﬁllement of condition that not less
than 90 percent of its total proﬁts, as reduced by the amount transferred to the mandatory reserve, as required under
the provisions of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, are diﬆributed
amongﬆ the certiﬁcate holders.
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Deferred
The Modaraba accounts for deferred taxation on all material temporary diﬀerences using the liability method arising
between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for ﬁnancial reporting purposes and ﬁnancial ﬆatements
used for taxation purposes. However, deferred tax liability has not been provided in these ﬁnancial ﬆatements as
the management believes that the future income of Modaraba will not be taxable in the foreseeable future due to the
fact that the Modaraba intends to continue availing the tax exemption through proﬁt diﬆribution to the extent of 90
percent of diﬆributable proﬁt.
4.10 Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
These are carried at coﬆ, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and
services.
4.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Modaraba has a present legal or conﬆructive obligation as a result of paﬆ
events, and it is probable that an outﬂow of resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable eﬆimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjuﬆed to reﬂect the current beﬆ eﬆimates.
4.12 Staﬀ retirement beneﬁts
Unfunded gratuity scheme
The Modaraba operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all eligible employees who have completed the minimum
qualifying period of service. Annual provision is made on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial
valuations are carried out using the projected unit credit method. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in
'other comprehensive income' as they occur and are not reclassiﬁed to proﬁt and loss account in subsequent
periods.
4.13 Revenue recognition
Ijarah
Income on Ijarah is recognised on an accrual basis. In case of ijarah arrangements with ﬆaggered rentals, the
income is recognised on a ﬆraight line basis over the ijarah term.
Musharaka Finance
Proﬁt on Musharaka arrangements is recognised on the basis of the projected rate of proﬁt. The eﬀect of
adjuﬆments, if any, between actual rate and projected rate of proﬁt is accounted for at the end of the transaction
after determination of the actual rate.

The Modaraba follows the ﬁnance method in recognising income on murabaha ﬁnance. Under this method the
unearned income i.e. the excess of aggregate murabaha inﬆallments over the coﬆ of the asset under murabaha
facility is deferred and then amortised over the term of the murabaha, so as to produce a conﬆant rate of return on
murabaha ﬁnance. Documentation charges, front-end fee and other murabaha income are recognised as income
on a receipt basis.
Modaraba Finance
Proﬁt on modaraba ﬁnance is recognised on the basis of pre-agreed proﬁt / loss sharing ratio where as actual gain
/ loss on transaction is computed upon termination / completion of transaction.
Diminishing Musharaka
Proﬁt on diminishing musharaka is recognised as and when proﬁts become due on a syﬆematic basis over the term
of diminishing musharaka period.
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Non-performing ﬁnancing arrangements
Unrealised income in respect of non-performing ﬁnancing arrangements is held in suspense account, where
necessary, in accordance with the requirements of Modaraba Regulations 2021 issued by the SECP.
Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Modaraba's right to receive the dividend is eﬆablished.
5.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Note

Cash at bank in :
Current accounts
Saving accounts

5.1

Cash in hand

2,930,026
144,163,838
147,093,864

2,844,003
68,930,313
71,774,316

20,790

98,183

147,114,654

71,872,499

5.1

Eﬀective proﬁt rates on these accounts range between 3.74% and 6.25% (June 30, 2020: 4.00% and 11.00%)
per annum.

6.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

Note

Fair value through proﬁt or loss (FVTPL) - quoted securities
Sukuk - Unliﬆed

6.1

6.1
6.2

6.2

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ---------8,565,305
20,712,440

5,680,702
-

29,277,745

5,680,702

Fair value through proﬁt or loss (FVTPL) - quoted securities
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
---------- Shares ----------
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June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

16,468
200

16,468
200

Automobile Parts & Accessories
Thal Limited
Indus Motor Company Ltd

6,962,341
250,828

42,400

42,400

Textile & Weaving
Service Fabrics Limited

1,352,136

130,592

59,068

59,068

8,565,305

5,680,702

5,351,112
198,998

Sukuk - Unliﬆed
This represents investment in privately placed perpetual sukuk certificates, outrightly purchased from the related
party. The details of investment are as under:

Description
Meezan Bank
Additional Tier
1 Sukuk

Investment Number
Date
of Units
May 19,
2021

20

Amount
Rupees
20,000,000

Monthly
Profit
3 months
KIBOR
+1.75% pa

Investment
Agent

Maturity

Fair Value

Al Baraka August 1,
20,712,440
2028
Bank Limited

The fair value of the investment has been determined using rate notified by the Mutual Funds Association of pakistan.
The Modaraba's business model for the investment is to hold the asset to obtain benefits by collecting the contractual cash flows associated with the financial asset and selling the financial asset as per financial needs of the
Modaraba.
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6.3

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

Surplus on revaluation of inveﬆments
Market value of inveﬆment at the end of the year
Less: coﬆ of inveﬆment

20,712,440
(20,000,000)
712,440

Surplus at the end of the year
7.

-

MODARABA TERM DEPOSIT
The Modaraba (Rabb-ul-Maal) inveﬆed in the General Pool created by related party (Mudarib or inveﬆment
manager) in accordance with the principles of Shariah. As per terms of the agreement, these term deposit will
mature on respective dates and the related party shall pay proﬁt to the Modaraba on maturity as per proﬁt sharing
ratio between the Modaraba and related party. The details of inveﬆment are as under:

May 07,
2021

8.

Investment
Amount
27,000,000

Maturity
Monthly roll over till
May 06, 2022

Profit Sharing Ratio
Rabb-ul-Maal
Mudarib
77.34%

22.66%

Profit Rate (per annum)
Rabb-ul-Maal
Mudarib
2.08%

7.10%

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

MODARABA FINANCE
Modaraba Finance
Less: provision for non-performing Modaraba arrangements

37,791,201
(37,791,201)
-

37,791,201
(37,791,201)
-

8.1

The Modaraba had provided funds under modaraba arrangements on proﬁt and loss sharing basis to various
entities outﬆanding since long. Based on the guidelines of the Modaraba Regulations 2021, receivables againﬆ
these ﬁnances have been fully provided.

9.

MUSHARAKA FINANCE
Musharaka ﬁnance
Less: provision for non-performing musharaka arrangement

Note

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ---------14,702,297
(14,702,297)

9.1

-

14,702,297
(14,702,297)
-

9.1

This represents waiver given to a client Z.H. Piprani & Co. under settlement agreement dated December 24,
2016.

10.

MURABAHA FINANCE
Murabaha ﬁnance
Less: provision for non-performing murabaha arrangements

Note
10.1

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

\

97,784,311
(97,784,311)

10.1 Movement of provision
Opening balance
Provision during the year
Reversal of provision during the year
Write-oﬀ of during the year

-

171,829,551
(171,829,551)
-

171,829,551
(38,426,119)
(35,619,121)

101,560,934
70,268,617
-

97,784,311

171,829,551

The Modaraba had provided funds under morabaha arrangements on proﬁt and loss sharing basis to various
entities outﬆanding since long. Based on the guidelines of the Modaraba Regulations 2021, receivables againﬆ
these ﬁnances have been fully provided. During the year receivable againﬆ a defaulted cuﬆomer has been settled
out of Court. All the legal suits againﬆ the cuﬆomer are withdrawn and securities released by the Modaraba.
Accordingly, provision againﬆ such ﬁnancing facility has been reversed.
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11.

DIMINISHING MUSHARKA FINANCE

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

Note

Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance - considered good
Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance - doubtful
Unearned Income

11.1

Less: provision for non-performing diminishing musharaka

11.2

Diminishing musharaka due after one year
Current portion of diminishing musharaka

39,111,432
666,134
(7,132,655)

21,596,527
6,384,294
(3,018,886)

32,644,911
(666,134)

24,961,935
(6,384,294)

31,978,777
(21,348,645)
10,630,132

18,577,641
(7,453,970)
11,123,671

11.1 The proﬁt rates on these diminishing musharaka arrangements range between 10.00% and 19.00% (2020: 10.00%
and 19.00%). All diminishing musharaka arrangements are secured againﬆ hypothecation of assets, personal
guarantees and promissory notes.
11.2 Movement of provision

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

Note

Opening balance
Reversal of provision during the year

6,384,294
(5,718,160)

11.3

6,384,294
-

666,134

6,384,294

11.3 During the year the Modaraba concluded settlement agreement with a defaulted cuﬆomer. The case was under
litigation, therefore, compromise application has been submitted with the Court, which was duly eﬀect the emicable
settlement. 'The cuﬆomer is regular in payment of settlement amount as per schedule, therefore, provision againﬆ
the receivable is reversed to the extent of actual recovery upto June 30, 2021.
12.

Receivable againﬆ sale of agriculture produce
During ﬁnancial year 2016 KASB Modaraba (KASBM) & Firﬆ Prudential Modaraba (FPrM) entered into a joint
project for crushing of banola seed and sale of oil cake (Khal) in the market. M/s Pakiﬆan Phutti International Limited
(PPIL) was engaged as seller & service provider responsible for sale of agriculture produce. Subsequently, natural
cyclical shortage in productivity of cotton crop aﬀected the availability of the banola seed and therefore the project
was prudently discontinued by the Management Company to safeguard the intereﬆ of the Modaraba. As per
settlement agreement dated April 27, 2016, with PPIL advance for purchase of banola seed was converted into
ijarah ﬁnance (secured) leaving a balance of Rs. 18.20 million receivable againﬆ sale of agirculture produce.
Receivable amount is secured againﬆ Regiﬆered Mortgage on Property of service provider. After continuous
default of payment the Management Company of Modaraba has ﬁled recovery suits in the Banking Courts which is
pending adjudication. The Management Company and the legal counsel are optimiﬆic on favourable outcome of the
case.The details of receivables are as under:
Description
Initial Inveﬆment
Add: Gain on sale of Agriculture Produce
Less: Receipt againﬆ sale of agriculture produce
Less: converted to Ijarah Financing
Less: Consultancy Charges
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"Provision for doubtful receivable againﬆ sale of
agriculture produce"
12.1 Movement of provision
Opening balance
Provision during the year
13.

IJARAH RENTALS RECEIVABLE
Ijarah rental receivable
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables
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12.1

KASBM
51,000,000
1,060,000
(14,353,590)
(19,311,320)
(194,950)
18,200,140

FPRM
81,000,000
1,590,000
(14,473,432)
(40,000,000)
(305,050)
27,811,518

Total
132,000,000
2,650,000
(28,827,022)
(59,311,320)
(500,000)
46,011,658

(18,200,140)

(27,811,518)

(46,011,658)

-

-

-

Note

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ---------18,200,140

-

10,548,691
7,651,449

18,200,140

18,200,140

23,890,164
(23,890,164)
-

23,890,164
(23,890,164)
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14.

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances to executives - unsecured
Advances to other employees - unsecured
Advances for purchase of assets
Prepayments
Short term security deposits
Accrued proﬁt
Advance tax
Receivable from associated entities
Others

14.1

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

14.1 ACCRUED PROFIT
Accrued proﬁt on bank deposits
Accrued proﬁt on sukuk
Accrued proﬁt on modaraba term deposit
Accrued license fee on property aquired in satisfaction of ﬁnancing facility
Write-oﬀ of accrued license fee
Impairment loss on accrued license fee

15.

40,000
293,848
338,964
271,300
434,400
2,782,763
1,456,583
442,002
6,059,859

77,921
2,000,000
485,563
217,300
981,546
3,852,433
522,022
198,329
8,335,114

692,973
162,524
126,049
7,874,930
(7,874,930)
-

434,400
7,874,930
(7,874,930)

-

-

981,546

434,400

PROPERTY ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF FINANCING FACILITY
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Modaraba acquired a real eﬆate property in Karachi for partial satisfaction
of murabaha ﬁnance facility extended to a cuﬆomer. As per the settlement agreement, the cuﬆomer had an option
to buy back the property with in a period of three years. The Modaraba ﬁled recovery suit againﬆ the cuﬆomer for
remaining balance of facility and prayed to the Honorable High Court for possession of property. During the period,
facility has been settled out of court (note 10.1) and Modaraba has withdrawn all legal suits againﬆ the cuﬆomer
and accordingly released the property in favor of the cuﬆomer.

16.

IJARAH ASSETS

Note

Plant and machinery

16.1

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ---------3,579,900

3,579,900

16.1 Assets held under Ijarah arrangement:

Year ended June 30, 2021
Net carrying value basis
Opening - NBV *
Depreciation charge
Closing - NBV
Gross carrying value basis
Coﬆ
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Closing - NBV

Plant and
Total
machinery
------------------- Rupees -------------------

Equipment

-

3,579,900
3,579,900

3,579,900
3,579,900

57,600
(57,600)
-

33,791,219
(30,211,319)
3,579,900

33,848,819
(30,268,919)
3,579,900

-

9,097,407
(1,379,382)
(4,138,125)

9,097,407
(1,379,382)
(4,138,125)

-

3,579,900
33,791,219
(30,211,319)

3,579,900
33,848,819
(30,268,919)

3,579,900
14 to 33

3,579,900

Year ended June 30, 2020
Opening - NBV
Depreciation charge
Impairment charge
Closing - NBV
Coﬆ
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
NBV
Depreciation rate % per annum

57,600
(57,600)
20 to 66

* This amount is the residual value of the asset hence remained undepreciated.
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17.

FIXED ASSETS - OWNED

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

Note
17.1

Tangible assets

103,666

1,545,071

17.1 Assets held under owned use
June 30, 2021
Accumulated Depreciation

Cost
As at July
01, 2020

Furniture and ﬁxtures
Oﬃce equipment
Electrical equipment
Plant & Machinery
Motor vehicles
Computers & accessories

Deletions

As at June
30, 2021

As at July
01, 2020

Charge for
the year

As at June
30, 2021

Impairment
Book value
103,666
As at July Charge for As at June 30,
the year
2021
01, 2020

--------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------8,912,424
551,202
5,079,382
871,446
1,984,180
3,606,305
21,004,939

(8,197,424)
(1,171,069)
(871,446)
(1,867,500)
(392,209)
(12,499,648)

715,000

8,688,780

551,202

457,857

3,908,313

4,426,484

-

871,446

116,680

1,801,927

3,214,096

3,213,374

8,505,291

19,459,868

109,700
(8,106,493)
62,467
299,925
(859,496)
(871,446)
29,104
(1,714,351)
182,511
(190,164)
683,707
(11,741,950)

Depreciation
rate per annum
------ % ------

691,987

-

-

23,013

10

520,324

-

-

30,878

20

3,866,913
-

-

-

41,400

20

-

-

-

20

116,680

-

-

-

20

3,205,721

-

-

8,375

30

8,401,625

-

-

103,666

June 30, 2020
Accumulated Depreciation

Coﬆ
As at July
01, 2019

Furniture and ﬁxtures
Oﬃce equipment
Electrical equipment
Plant & Machinery
Motor vehicles
Computers and accessories

Deletions

As at June
30, 2020

As at July
01, 2019

Charge for the
year

Impairment *

As at June
30, 2020

As at July
01, 2019

Book value

Charge for
the year

As at June 30,
2020

--------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------15,438,438

-

15,438,438

8,485,572

203,208

8,688,780

551,202

-

551,202

355,342

102,515

457,857

-

5,938,878

-

5,938,878

4,294,945

131,539

4,426,484

-

859,496

3,227,600

-

3,227,600

726,258

145,188

871,446

-

2,356,154

1,661,865

140,062

3,606,305

-

3,606,305

3,066,071

147,303

3,213,374

30,746,603

1,984,180

-

-

30,746,603

1,984,180

18,590,053

869,815

19,459,868

6,526,014

1,801,927

------ % -----10

-

223,644

-

93,345

20

652,898

20

6,526,014

Depreciation
rate per annum

3,215,650

-

20

182,253

20

392,931

30

1,545,071

* The modaraba has recorded impairment on assets which have nil value in use.

18.

REDEEMABLE CAPITAL- PARTICIPATORY AND UNSECURED

Note

Certiﬁcates of Musharaka

18.1

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ---------1,315,000

1,315,000

18.1 This represents matured and unclaimed amount againﬆ certiﬁcate of musharaka.
19.

MUSHARAKA FINANCE

Note

Due within one year

19.1

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------50,000,000

-
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19.1 The Pak Brunei Inveﬆment Company Limited (PBICL) - the ultimate parent company extended callable / convertible
ﬁnancing line of Rs.250 million to Modaraba under Musharaka arrangement. As per the Agreement the ﬁrﬆ tranche
of Rs.50 million is disbursed on January 28, 2021.
The return on ﬁnance shall be payable after ﬁnalization of annual ﬁnancial ﬆatements of the Modaraba by way of
allocation of net proﬁt before tax and management fee, in the ratio of PBICL inveﬆment to total musharaka capital
(i.e. the sum of PBICL ﬁnance and the modaraba equity as on September 30, 2020). The facility is secured by way
of hypothecation charge on all movable assets and receivables and mortgage of immovable property of the
Modaraba.
19.2 The SECP vide order No. SC/M/RW/KASB/2020 dated January 31, 2020 granted the management rights of the
Modaraba to the Management Company. As per the terms of the order and subsequent correspondence with SECP,
an amount of Rs. 50 million is to be injected in the modaraba lateﬆ by January 31, 2021 and the balance of Rs. 200
million lateﬆ by June 30, 2021.
The parent company of the management company has injected Rs. 50 million in the modaraba as mentioned in note
19.1. For remaining amount of Rs. 200 million, Management Company has approached SECP vide letter dated May
05, 2021 and requeﬆed to reward its support as various factors including COVID 19 and its variants impacted the
business environment in general and withdrawal of tax exemption to the modaraba sector in particular, ﬆrong
liquidity position of the modaraba etc. As such further injection shall result in loss to the inveﬆors. Reply from SECP
is awaited.
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20.

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Management fees
SWWF Payable
Sundry creditors
Accrued expenses
Charity payable
Insurance premium received in advance
Other liabilities

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ----------

Note

3,299,941
1,503,300
4,879,609
1,693,909
1,483,194
139,287
777,648

919,240
850,311
700,954
1,214,078
281,005
542,665

13,776,888

4,508,253

20.1 & 27
28
20.2

20.1 The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) has imposed Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on the Modaraba Management Company's
remuneration with eﬀect from November 01, 2011. However, certain modaraba management companies have
approached the Honourable Sindh High Court (the Court) and Appellate Tribunal of SRB, challenging the levy of
SST on management company's remuneration. The Modaraba Management Company has not received any
demand notice from SRB for payment of SST on Management Company's remuneration and accordingly, based on
legal advisor's opinion, obtained by one of the Modaraba under common management can neither ﬁle any petition
challenging the levy of SST on Management Company's remuneration nor can join the proceedings of pending
petition in the Court. As a matter of abundant caution the management is accruing SST on Management Company's
remuneration and will discharge the liability on direction of the Court based on outcome of the petition ﬁled by other
modaraba management companies.
20.2 Movement of charity payable

June 30, 2020
June 30, 2021
---------- Rupees ---------1,214,078
269,116
1,483,194
1,483,194

Opening balance
Add: amount credited during the year
Less: Paid during the year
Closing balance
21.

743,907
470,171
1,214,078
1,214,078

DEFERRED LIABILITIES - STAFF GRATUITY

21.1 Staﬀ Gratuity Scheme
As disclosed in note 4.12, the Modaraba operates an unapproved, unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent
employees. The lateﬆ actuarial valuation was carried out by actuaries as at June 30, 2021, using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. The beneﬁts under the gratuity scheme are payable on cessation of service as under:
Number of years of eligible service completed

Amount of gratuity payable for each year of service

Less than 3 years
Equal to 3 years
Equal to 4 years
Greater than or equal to 5 years

Nil
0.6 times of laﬆ drawn basic salary
0.8 times of laﬆ drawn basic salary
1 time of laﬆ drawn basic salary

21.2 Principal actuarial assumptions used:

21.3 Signiﬁcant Actuarial Assumptions
Financial Assumptions
-

Valuation discount rate
Expected rate of increase in salaries

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

10.75%
5.75%

9.25%
5.00%

SLIC(2001-05)
Low

SLIC(2001-05)
Low

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in service)
Rates of employee turnover
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The following signiﬁcant assumptions have been used for the valuation of this scheme:
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21.4 Statement of Financial Position
Present value of deﬁned beneﬁt obligation

Note
21.5

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------1,382,916

3,770,020

21.5 Movement in the deﬁned beneﬁt liability
Opening balance
Charge to proﬁt and loss account
Beneﬁts paid during the year
Remeasurements gains recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year
Closing balance

21.6
21.7

3,770,020
790,840
(2,736,020)
(441,924)
1,382,916

3,389,955
1,076,197
(83,726)
(612,406)
3,770,020

21.6 Deﬁned Beneﬁt Coﬆ for the Year
Coﬆ recognised in Proﬁt and Loss Account for the year
Current service coﬆ
Intereﬆ Coﬆ on deﬁned beneﬁt obligation

568,654
222,186
790,840

605,059
471,138
1,076,197

Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income
during the year
Actuarial gain on obligation
Total deﬁned beneﬁt coﬆ recognised in proﬁt & loss account
and other comprehensive income - net

(441,924)

348,916

(612,406)

463,791

21.7 Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
during the year
Actuarial gain on obligation
Gain due to change in ﬁnancial assumptions
- Due to actual salary increase
- Due to other reasons
Total actuarial gain on obligation

55,545

241,354

69,146
317,233
386,379

348,727
22,325
371,052

441,924

612,406

9,611
46,307
96,829
9,821,294

885,011
760,917
919,978
12,108,845

9,974,041

14,674,751

21.8 Maturity proﬁle of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
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Diﬆribution of timing of beneﬁt payments
within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
between 2 and 5 years
between 5 and10 years
Beyond 10 years
21.9 "Sensitivity Analysis on signiﬁcant actuarial assumptions:
Actuarial Liability"
Discount Rate +1%
Discount Rate -1%
Long Term Salary Increases +1%
Long Term Salary Increases -1%
Withdrawals Rates +10%
Withdrawals Rates -10%
1 Year Mortality age set back
1 Year Mortality age set forward
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1,176,718
1,631,373
1,636,966
1,169,188
1,382,916
1,382,916
1,382,916
1,382,916

3,407,579
4,207,632
4,224,017
3,387,649
3,770,020
3,770,020
3,770,020
3,770,020

11,145,909

30,306,957
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21.10 Based on actuarial advice, the Modaraba eﬆimates a gratuity expense of Rs. 0.791 (June 30, 2020 : 1.076) million
for the year ending June 30, 2021.
22.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
---------- Certificates ---------24,958,400

24,958,400

3,316,000

3,316,000

19,792,080

19,792,080

48,066,480

48,066,480

Modaraba Certiﬁcates of Rs. 10/- each fully
paid in cash
Modaraba Certiﬁcates of Rs. 10/- each
issued as fully paid bonus certiﬁcates
Modaraba Certiﬁcates of Rs. 10/- each
issued at 50% discount as right certiﬁcates

249,584,000

249,584,000

33,160,000

33,160,000

197,920,800

197,920,800

480,664,800

480,664,800

22.1 As at 30 June 2021, Pak Brunei Inveﬆment Company Limited (holding Company of the Management Company)
held 4,806,648 (June 30, 2020: Nil).
23.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
"Some of the modarabas in the sector have received letter from Assiﬆant Commissioner, Sindh Revenue Board
(SRB), whereby it came to their notice that these Modarabas are engaged in providing / rendering taxable services
which falls under the Second Schedule of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the Act), and the sales tax on such
services, i.e. on lease rentals / lease ﬁnancing transactions remains outﬆanding. The modarabas who have
received the said letter, collectively decided that under the supervision of NBFI & Modaraba Association Pakiﬆan, a
petition againﬆ the same be ﬁled through a common legal counsel in the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS)
challenging levy of Services Sales Tax on lease rental/ lease ﬁnancing transactions including the vires of various
headings of the Second Schedule of the Act. Being similar in nature of business it was expected that the same type
of letter shall be received by KASB Modaraba. Therefore, management has taken cautious approach and become
a party in collective eﬀort undertaken by the other modarabas.
FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank charges
Return on musharaka ﬁnance to the PBICL
Proﬁt on Term Finance Facility

25.

OTHER INCOME
Insurance income
Return on bank deposits
Return on modaraba term deposit
Return on sukuks
Others

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------43,084
5,762,187
-

22,591
410,531

5,805,271

433,122

329,313
6,945,663
288,863
292,508
1,861,701

731,326
4,648,576
537,778

9,718,048

5,917,680
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26.

Note

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

26.1 & 26.2

Salaries and beneﬁts
Utilities
Insurance
Poﬆage
Repairs and maintenance
Entertainment
Printing and ﬆationery
Travelling and conveyance
Fee and subscriptions
Auditors' remuneration
Legal and professional charges
Depreciation - owned assets
Impairment loss on owned assets
Amortization
Advertisements
Rent, rate and taxes
Newspapers and periodicals
CIB charges
Verysis charges
Security services
Training and seminar
Shared services expense
Others

26.4

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------8,664,321
387,043
926,486
58,451
897,182
188,726
90,142
121,590
2,117,787
396,847
3,769,402
683,707
103,985
962,513
2,809
357,984
1,407,921
23,177
21,160,073

10,098,448
731,527
4,468,616
93,537
845,722
162,250
140,719
220,782
1,397,547
429,000
2,902,658
869,815
3,215,650
69,137
1,722,607
69,448
9,245
45,499
751,393
10,000
435,858
28,689,456

26.1 The salaries and beneﬁts include an amount of Rs. 0.791 (June 30, 2020 : 1.076) million in respect of
retirement gratuity.
26.2 Remuneration to oﬃcers and other employees
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
Other
Other
Officers
Employees
Employees
---------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------
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Officers

Managerial remuneration
Medical allowance
House rent allowance
Utility allowance
Employee beneﬁts
EOBI contribution
Bonus

1,018,647
134,700
404,112
134,712
196,600
7,800
590,082

3,065,506
419,042
1,257,120
419,035
594,240
84,500
338,225

2,971,654
400,744
1,202,239
400,751
581,147
9,360
20,000

1,463,012
465,462
1,396,375
465,452
523,587
68,665
130,000

Number of persons

2,486,653
2

6,177,668
13

5,585,895
5

4,512,553
13

26.3 The total number of employees as at June 30, 2021 are 5. (June 30, 2020: 18) and the average number of
employees during the year equates to 13 (June 30, 2020: 18).
26.4 Auditors’ remuneration
Annual audit fee
Review of interim ﬁnancial ﬆatements
Out of pocket expenses
27.

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------325,000
50,000
21,847

325,000
95,000
9,000

396,847

429,000

MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION
In accordance with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, management remuneration at the rate of
10% of annual proﬁts is payable to the Management Company.
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28.

SINDH WORKER'S WELFARE FUND
The Sindh Assembly passed a bill on May 4, 2015 and notiﬁed Sindh Worker's Welfare Act 2014 on June 4, 2015.
As per the said Act the applicability of Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund is eﬀective from the ﬁnancial year of the entities
ended on or after December 31, 2013. Accordingly provision has been made at the rate of 2% (June 30, 2020 : 2%)
of proﬁt before taxation or taxable income , whichever is higher , eﬀective after June 30, 2014.

29.

TAXATION
The income of the Modaraba is exempt from tax subject to the condition that not less than ninety per cent of its total
proﬁts in the year as reduced by the amount transferred to a mandatory reserve, required under the provisions of
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) are diﬆributed
amongﬆ the certiﬁcate holders.
No provision for current and deferred taxation has been made in these ﬁnancial ﬆatements in accordance with the
accounting policy of the Modaraba as disclosed in note 4.9 to the ﬁnancial ﬆatements.

29.1 "On March 22, 2021, the President of Pakiﬆan promulgated the Tax Law (Second Amendment) Ordinance,
2021, (Ordinance 2021) which was subsequently adopted thereof by the Finance Act 2021 (FA 2021), whereby
Clause 100 of the Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 relating to the Tax Exemption
available to the Modarabas ﬆands withdrawn.
Tax Exemption had been available to the Modarabas under Section 37 of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, which was operative and speciﬁed under Clause 100 of Part 1 of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the exemption has been removed. However, as per the legal
opinion the beneﬁciaries of the tax exemption shall continue to enjoy beneﬁts of the repealed provisions for the year
ended June 30, 2021 subject to conditions and limitations speciﬁed therein as the enactment date of FA 2021 is
June 30, 2021 (the ﬁnancial year end of the Modaraba).
If the law prevails and not challenged, the Modaraba may be required to present impact of income tax and deferred
tax in its subsequent ﬁnancial ﬆatements.
30.

EARNING / (LOSS) PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

Proﬁt / (Loss) for the year

29,203,024

Weighted average number of certiﬁcates

48,066,480

(102,920,867)

---------- Number ---------48,066,480

---------- Rupees ---------0.61

Earnings / (Loss) per certiﬁcate -basic and diluted*

(2.14)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Short term inveﬆments
Modaraba term deposit
Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance
Advances, prepayments and other receivables

As at June 30, 2021
-------------------- Rupees -------------------At amortised
FVTPL
FVTOCI
cost
147,114,654
27,000,000
31,978,777
3,997,118
210,090,549

-

8,565,305

8,565,305

-

20,712,440

-

20,712,440
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*The Modaraba does not have any dilutive potential shares in issue as at the year end.
31.
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June 30, 2021
----------- Rupees ----------Other financial
At fair value
liabilities

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Redeemable capital
Musharaka Finance
Security deposit
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Financial charges payable to PBICL
Unclaimed proﬁt diﬆribution

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Short term inveﬆments
Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Long term advances

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

-

1,315,000
50,000,000
3,579,900
12,293,694
5,762,187
2,815,955

-

75,766,736

June 30, 2020
-------------------- Rupees -------------------At amortised
FVTPL
FVTOCI
cost
71,872,499

-

18,577,641
2,938,133
8,333
93,396,606

5,680,702

-

-

-

5,680,702

-

June 30, 2020
----------- Rupees -----------

Redeemable capital
Security deposit
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Unclaimed proﬁt diﬆribution

-

-

1,315,000
3,579,900
3,294,175
2,834,156

-

11,023,231

31.1 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Modaraba ﬁnances its operations mainly through equity, borrowing and deposits. The Modaraba utilises funds
in ijarah ﬁnancing, modaraba ﬁnancing, musharaka ﬁnancing, diminishing musharaka and murabaha ﬁnancing,
inveﬆment in sukuk amd modaraba term deposit. These activities are exposed to a variety of ﬁnancial risks that are
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors of the Management Company has the overall responsibility for the eﬆablishment and
oversight of the Modaraba's risk management framework.
31.2 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial inﬆrument may ﬂuctuate as a result of
changes in market intereﬆ rates or the market prices of securities due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the
inﬆrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the
market.
Market risk comprises of three types of risk namely currency risk, proﬁt rate risk and price risk.
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31.2.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial inﬆrument will ﬂuctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Modaraba, at present is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are
carried out in Pak Rupees.
31.2.2 Proﬁt rate risk
Proﬁt rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial inﬆrument will ﬂuctuate due to changes
in the market proﬁt rates. The Modaraba has adopted appropriate policies to minimise its exposure to this risk.
Yield / proﬁt rate sensitivity position for, on balance sheet ﬁnancial inﬆruments is based on the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity date.

June 30, 2021

Effective
yield / profit
rate %

Assets

Not
exposed to
yield/ profit
risk
--------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------

Total

Upto one
month

Cash and bank balances
3.74%-6.21% 147,114,654 144,163,838
Short term inveﬆment
9.62%
29,277,745
Modaraba term deposit
7.10%
27,000,000
Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance 10.00%-19% 31,978,777
1,226,162
"Advances, prepayments and
other receivables"
3,997,118
Total
212,368,294 172,390,000

Over one
Over 3
month to 3 months to
months
one year

1,723,747
1,723,747

20,712,440
7,680,223
28,392,663

Over one
year to 5
years

21,348,645
21,348,645

2,950,816
8,565,305
3,997,118
15,513,239
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Liabilities
1,315,000
1,315,000
Redeemable capital
50,000,000
50,000,000
Musharaka ﬁnance
3,579,900
3,579,900
Security deposit
"Creditors, accrued and other
12,562,810
12,562,810
liabilities"
5,762,187
5,762,187
Financial charges payable to PBICL2,834,156
2,834,156
Unclaimed proﬁt diﬆribution
76,054,053
50,000,000
26,054,053
Total
172,390,000
1,723,747 (21,607,337) 21,348,645
Total yield / proﬁt risk sensitivity gap
Cumulative yield / proﬁt risk sensitivity gap
172,390,000 174,113,747 152,506,410 173,855,055 173,855,055
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Effective
yield / profit
rate %

June 30, 2020
Not
Over one
Over 3
Over one exposed to
Upto one month to 3 months to year to 5 yield/ profit
month
months
one year
years
risk
--------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------

Total

Assets
Cash and bank balances
4.00%-11.00% 71,872,499
Short term inveﬆment
5,680,702
Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance 9.51%-19% 18,577,641
"Advances, prepayments and
other receivables"
2,938,133
Long-term Deposit
8,333
Total
99,077,308
Liabilities
Redeemable capital
1,315,000
Security deposit
3,579,900
"Creditors, accrued and
other liabilities"
3,294,175
Unclaimed proﬁt diﬆribution
2,834,156
Total
11,023,231
Total yield / proﬁt risk sensitivity gap
Cumulative yield / proﬁt risk sensitivity gap

68,930,313
3,246,230
72,176,543

1,631,676

6,245,765

1,631,676

7,453,970

6,245,765

7,453,970

2,942,186
5,680,702
2,938,133
8,333
11,569,354

-

-

-

-

1,315,000
3,579,900

-

-

-

-

3,294,175
2,834,156
11,023,231

72,176,543

1,631,676

6,245,765

7,453,970

72,176,543

73,808,219

80,053,984

87,507,954

87,507,954

Sensitivity analysis for ﬁnancial inﬆruments
The sensitivity of the net income for the year is the eﬀect of the assumed changes in proﬁt rates on the ﬂoating rate
ﬁnancial inﬆruments held at the year end. The following table demonﬆrates the sensitivity of the Modaraba's
income for the year to a reasonably possible change in proﬁt rates, with all other variables held conﬆant.

Changes in basis point
+100
-100

Impact on profit or loss
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------1,738,551
(1,738,551)

875,080
(875,080)

In practice, the actual results may diﬀer from the sensitivity analysis shown above.
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31.2.3 Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial inﬆrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from proﬁt rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused
by factors speciﬁc to the individual ﬁnancial inﬆrument or its issuer, or factors aﬀecting all similar ﬁnancial
inﬆruments traded in the market.
The carrying amount of inveﬆments in equity and sukuks carried at fair value as shown in note 6 is as follows:

+5%
-5%
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June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------1,463,887
284,035
(1,463,887)
(284,035)
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31.3 Credit risk
31.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a ﬁnancial inﬆrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a ﬁnancial loss. The Modaraba is exposed to credit risk in respect of net inveﬆment in ﬁnance lease,
musharaka, murabaha, modaraba, diminishing musharaka, short term inveﬆment and modaraba term deposit and
ijarah rental receivables.
Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or
have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly aﬀected
by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of
an entity's performance to developments aﬀecting a particular induﬆry.
The Modaraba attempts to control credit risk by diversiﬁcation of ﬁnancing activities to avoid undue concentration of
credit risk with individuals or groups of cuﬆomers in speciﬁc locations or businesses, monitoring credit exposures,
limiting transactions to speciﬁc counterparties and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties. It
also obtains securities when appropriate.
The Modaraba follows two sets of guidelines. It has its own operating policy and the management of the Modaraba
also adheres to the regulations issued by the SECP. The operating policy deﬁnes the extent of fund and non-fund
based exposures with reference to a particular sector or group.
The Modaraba’s maximum exposure to credit risk related to ﬁnancial inﬆruments at June 30, 2021 and June 30,
2020 is the carrying amounts of following ﬁnancial assets:
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

Balances with banks
Short term inveﬆment
Modaraba term deposit
Diminishing musharakah
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

147,093,864
20,712,440
27,000,000
31,978,777
3,997,118

71,774,316
18,577,641
2,898,133

230,782,199

93,250,090

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Modaraba's bank balances:

Dubai Islamic Bank
Soneri Bank Limited
Summit Bank
HBL Islamic Bank
Albaraka Bank (Pakiﬆan) Ltd
Bank Islami Pakiﬆan
JS Bank Limited
Silk Bank Ltd
Meezan Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited

Short Term

Long Term

A-1+
A1+
A-1+
A-1
A-1
A-1+
A-2
A-1+
A-1+

AA
AAAAA
A+
A+
AAAAAA
AA+

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------112,506,327
30,536,593
2,315,115
931,465
710,734
85,420
896
-

1,185
65,087,332
2,713,527
2,085,717
1,095,919
692,850
85,420
896
2,131
87

147,086,550

71,765,064

31.3.3 An analysis of the age of signiﬁcant ﬁnancial assets that are paﬆ due but not required to be impaired by
applicable laws are as under:
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31.3.2 Bank balances
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June 30, 2021

June 30, 2020

Total outstanding
amount

Payment
overdue (in
days)

-

1 - 90 Days
1 - 90 Days
1 - 90 Days
1 - 90 Days

Ijarah rentals receivable
Murabaha ﬁnance
Diminishing musharaka ﬁnance
Modaraba ﬁnance

Total
outstanding
amount

Payment
overdue (in
days)
-

1 - 90 Days
1 - 90 Days
1 - 90 Days
1 - 90 Days

31.3.4 An analysis of the ﬁnancial assets that are individually impaired as per the requirements of the Modaraba
Regulations 2021 for Modarabas are as under:

OAEM
-

Ijarah rentals receivable
Murabaha Finance
Musharaka Finance
Modaraba
"Diminishing Musharaka
Finance"
"Receivable againﬆ sale
of agriculture produce"

June 30, 2021
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
----------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------23,890,164
97,784,311
14,702,297
37,791,201

Total
23,890,164
97,784,311
14,702,297
37,791,201

-

-

-

666,134

666,134

-

-

-

18,200,140

18,200,140

OAEM

Ijarah rentals receivable
Murabaha Finance
Musharaka Finance
Modaraba
"Diminishing Musharaka
Finance"
"Receivable againﬆ sale
of agriculture produce"

576,493
-

June 30, 2020
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total
----------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------23,890,164
23,890,164
158,951,515
158,951,515
14,702,297
14,702,297
37,791,201
37,791,201
219,605
6,384,294
7,180,392
-

-

18,200,140

18,200,140

31.3.5 Ijarah Assets
June 30, 2021
(Rupees)
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Fuel and energy
Others

31.3.6 Finance arrangements
Diminishing Musharaka ﬁnance

100,000
3,479,900
3,579,900

June 30, 2020
(Rupees)
%

%
2.79
97.21
100.00

100,000
2,100,518
2,200,518

4.54%
95.46%
100.00%

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------31,978,777
31,978,777

18,577,641
18,577,641

31.4 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will encounter diﬃculty in meeting its ﬁnancial obligations as they fall due.
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba will be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected or will face diﬃculty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with ﬁnancial liabilities as they fall
due. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
suﬃcient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and ﬆress conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's reputation.
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The table below analyses the Modaraba's ﬁnancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash ﬂows.
June 30, 2021
More than three
More than one
Total
months and
year
upto one year
------------------------------------ Rupees ---------------------------------Upto three
months

Liabilities
Musharaka ﬁnance
Redeemable capital
Security deposits
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Unclaimed proﬁt diﬆribution
Total liabilities

50,000,000
1,315,000
3,579,900
13,776,888
2,815,955

1,315,000
3,579,900
13,776,888
2,815,955

50,000,000
-

-

71,487,743

21,487,743

50,000,000

-

June 30, 2020
More than
More than one
Total
three months
year
and upto one
------------------------------------ Rupees ---------------------------------Upto three
months

Liabilities
Redeemable capital
Security deposits
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Unclaimed proﬁt diﬆribution
Total liabilities

1,315,000
3,579,900
4,508,254
2,834,156
12,237,309

1,315,000
3,579,900
4,508,254
2,834,156
12,237,309

-

-

31.5 Fair value of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, diﬀerences can arise between carrying values and the fair
value eﬆimates. Underlying the deﬁnition of fair value is the presumption that the Modaraba is a going concern
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms. The eﬆimated fair value of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities is considered not signiﬁcantly diﬀerent from
book values as the items are either short - term in nature or periodically repriced.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Modaraba's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide adequate returns for certiﬁcate-holders and beneﬁts for other ﬆakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital ﬆructure to reduce the coﬆ of capital.
Consiﬆent with others in the induﬆry, the Modaraba monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total Certiﬁcate of Musharaka and
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus
net debt.

Total borrowings and deposits
Cash and bank balances
Net debt
Total equity
Total capital
Gearing ratio

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ---------57,077,187
(147,114,654)

1,315,000
(71,872,499)

(90,037,467)
168,757,010
78,719,543

(70,557,499)
138,399,622
67,842,123

-114%

-104%
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33.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related parties of the Modaraba comprise of the Management Company and its Holding Company, Modarabas
under common management (Awwal Modaraba, Firﬆ Prudential Modaraba and Firﬆ Pak Modaraba) other associated companies, ﬆaﬀ retirement funds, Directors and Key Management Personnel. Transactions with related parties
are carried out at agreed rates.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company. The Modaraba considers its Chief Financial Oﬃcer and Business Heads
to be its key management personnel. There are no transactions with key management personnel other than their
terms of employment / entitlement. Details of certiﬁcate holding of Holding Company, Management Company,
Directors, Key Management Personnel and their family members are disclosed in pattern of certiﬁcate holding
included in the annual report of the Modaraba.
Transactions and balances with related parties during the year other than those disclosed elsewhere in the ﬁnancial
ﬆatements are given below.

Relationship with Modaraha
Balances with related parties
"Holding Company of the
Management Company"
"Pak Brunei Inveﬆment
Company Limited"

Nature of Transactions

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

Modaraba Term Deposit
Accrued return on modaraba term deposit
Musharika Finance
Accrued return on musharaka ﬁnance
Accrued shared service coﬆ
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Modaraba Management Company
"Awwal Modaraba Management
Limited"
Management fee
"Modarabas under common
management "
Awwal Modaraba
Payable againﬆ coﬆ of deputed employee
Payable againﬆ sharing of common expenses
Firﬆ Prudential Modaraba
Receivable againﬆ sharing of common expenses
Firﬆ Pak Modaraba
Receivable againﬆ sharing of common expenses
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27,000,000
126,049
(50,000,000)
(5,762,187)
(242,936)

-

(3,299,941)

-

(659,542)
(64,095)
1,547,652
282,468

1,170,594
285,989
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Relationship with Modaraha
Expense / (income) for the period
"Holding Company of the
Management Company"
"Pak Brunei Inveﬆment
Company Limited"

Nature of Transactions

Return on modraba term deposit
Return on musharaka ﬁnance
Shared services coﬆ

Modarabas under common management
Awwal Modaraba
Staﬀ coﬆ of deputed employee
Firﬆ Prudential Modaraba
Reimbursement of expenses
Firﬆ Pak Modaraba
Reimbursement of expenses
Other related party
Jubilee Life Insurance Co. Ltd
Takaful premium
Payments / (Receipts) made during the period
"Holding Company of the
Management Company"
"Pak Brunei Inveﬆment
Modaraba Term Deposit
Company Limited"
Return on modraba term deposit
Musharika Finance
Shared service coﬆ
Modarabas under common management
Awwal Modaraba
Staﬀ coﬆ of deputed employee
Firﬆ Prudential Modaraba
Sharing of common expenses
Firﬆ Pak Modaraba
Sharing of common expenses
Jubilee Life Insurance Co. Ltd
Takaful premium
34.

June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020
---------- Rupees ----------

(288,863)
5,762,187
1,407,921

1,731,253
(2,359,136)
(646,012)
496,002

27,000,000
(162,814)
(50,000,000)
1,164,985

1,071,711
(1,982,078)
(649,533)
496,002

-

(5,865,591)
(623,984)
614,884

-

(6,654,996)
(985,309)
614,884

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding ﬁgures have been rearranged and reclassiﬁed, wherever necessary for the purposes of comparison
and better presentation. However, no signiﬁcant rearrangements or reclassiﬁcation have been made in these
ﬁnancial ﬆatements during the current year.

35.

NON ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Directors have proposed dividend for the year ended June 30, 2021 of Re.0.48 per certiﬁcate (2020:
Re. “nil”), amounting to Rs. 23,071,910 (2020: Rs.”nil”) at their meeting held on Auguﬆ 27, 2021. The ﬁnancial
ﬆatements for the year ended June 30, 2021 do not include the eﬀect of the above which will be accounted for in
the period in which it is declared.

36.

GENERAL
Figures in these ﬁnancial ﬆatements have been rounded oﬀ to the neareﬆ Rupee.
DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These ﬁnancial ﬆatements has been authorized for issue on 27-08-2021 by the Board of Directors of Awwal
Modaraba Management Limited.

For Awwal Mudaraba Management Limited
(Management Company)
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37.

Pattern of Holding of Certificates by the Certificate Holders
As At 30 June, 2021
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NO. OF
CERTIFICATE
HOLDERS

404
287
163
204
56
16
21
10
7
5
8
5
1
2
1
2
1
3
9
3
2
9
4
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1235

52

CERTIFICATE HOLDING
FROM

1
101
501
1,001
5,001
10,001
15,001
20,001
25,001
30,001
35,001
45,001
50,001
60,001
65,001
70,001
90,001
95,001
100,001
150,001
245,001
285,001
300,001
470,001
585,001
795,001
855,001
995,001
1,375,001
1,540,001
3,465,001
4,805,001
10,445,001
12,395,001

TO

-

TOTAL CERTIFICATES
HELD

100
500
1,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
50,000
55,000
65,000
70,000
75,000
95,000
100,000
150,000
200,000
250,000
290,000
400,000
500,000
590,000
800,000
860,000
1,000,000
1,380,000
1,545,000
3,470,000
4,810,000
10,450,000
12,400,000

15,935
80,871
135,837
492,988
433,538
201,969
368,728
229,761
201,845
159,450
295,500
250,000
55,000
126,377
65,500
150,000
95,000
300,000
1,139,035
566,320
494,500
2,596,122
1,356,336
975,000
590,000
795,980
858,500
1,000,000
1,375,733
1,544,000
3,466,500
4,806,648
10,446,767
12,396,740
Total

48,066,480

Pattern of Holding of Certificates by the Certificate Holders
As At 30 June, 2021
S. NO.

CATEGORY OF
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

NO. OF CERTIFICATE
HELD

CATEGORY WISE
CERTIFICATE
HELD

PERCENTAGE %

1

INDIVIDUALS

1188

12,717,610

26.46

2

INVESTMENT COMPANIES

4

4,924,811

10.25

3

INSURANCE COMPANIES

3

796,380

1.66

4

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES

15

1,049,823

2.18

5

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

11

10,472,584

21.79

6

LEASING COMPANIES

1

1,246

0.00

7

MODARABA COMPANIES

3

36

0.00

8

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

9

Pak Brunei Investment
Company Limited

1

4,806,648

10.00

10

OTHER COMPANIES

9

13,297,342

27.66

1235

48,066,480

100.00%

TOTAL

CERTIFICATE HOLDING 5% & ABOVE :
CATEGORY OF
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

NO. OF
CERTIFICATE HELD

%

1

KASB Invest ( Private) Limited

16,721,740

34.79

2

BankIslami Pakistan

10,446,767

21.73

3

Pak Brunei Investment Company Limited

4,806,648

10.00
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S. NO.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the Annual Review meeting of the Modaraba’s Certiﬁcate Holders of KASB Modaraba will be
held on Thursday, 14th October, 2021 at 10:30 am, through (Zoom Application) to review the performance of the Modaraba
for the year ended 30 June 2021.
On behalf of the Board
Misbah Asjad
Company Secretary

Karachi, 22 September, 2021

Notes:
1.

Participation of Certiﬁcate holders through electronic means:
In view of prevailing situation due to the pandemic of COVID-19 and pursuant to the guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakiﬆan, the Annual Review Meeting of Certiﬁcate holders of Modaraba
will be held through zoom application only to ensure safety and well-being of Certiﬁcate holders.
Certiﬁcate holders intereﬆed in attending the Annual Review Meeting are requeﬆed to get themselves regiﬆered
by providing the following information through our e-mail : arm2021.kasb@awwal.com.pk at earlieﬆ but not later
than 48 hours before the time of meeting:-

Name of Certificate holders

CNIC

Folio/CDC
Account No

E Mail
Address

Cell No

Annual Report 2021

The Zoom login credentials will be shared with only those certiﬁcate holders whose emails, containing all the
required particulars.
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2.

The certiﬁcate transfer books shall remain closed from Thursday 30 September, 2021 to Thursday 14 October 2021
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the oﬃce of the Share Regiﬆrar of KASB Modaraba i.e. M/s C.K
.Management Associates (Private) Limited, 404- Trade Towers, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi, before the close of
business hours on Wednesday, 29 September, 2021 will be treated as in time for the purpose of entitlement to
dividend to the transferees and attend the Annual Review Meeting.

3.

The Certiﬁcate holders are advised to notify change in their address, if any, to M/s C.K .Management Associates
(Private) Limited, 404- Trade Towers, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi, Phone : 021-35687839

4.

The Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2021 will also be placed on Modaraba's website simultaneously with
the dispatch of the same through CD to the certiﬁcate holders. Certiﬁcate holders who wishes to receive Annual
Report of Modaraba by E-mail or printed copy at their regiﬆered address are advised to send Requeﬆ form
available on the web of Modaraba.

5.

Dividend income is liable to deduction of withholding tax under Section 150, of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
withholding of tax on dividend based on 'Active' and 'Non-Active' ﬆatus of certiﬁcate holders shall be @ 25% and
50% respectively where 'Active' means a person whose name appears on the Active Taxpayers Liﬆ available at
e-portal of FBR (http://www.fbr.gov.pk/) and 'Non-Active' means a person whose name is not being appeared on the
Active Taxpayers liﬆ.

6.

In case a Folio/CDS Account is jointly held, each joint-holder is to be treated separately as Active or Non-Active, In
terms of the said clariﬁcation, tax of each joint-holder has been deducted on the gross dividend amount determined
by bifurcating the certiﬁcate holding of each joint-holder on equal proportions, except where certiﬁcate holding
proportion of joint-holder(s) is pre-deﬁned as per the records of our Share Regiﬆrar and thus tax rates are applied
in line with respective proportions, Those certiﬁcate holders who are holding Folio/CDS jointly: are requeﬆed to
notify (in writing) any change in their certiﬁcate holding proportions to our Share Regiﬆrar (in case of physical
certiﬁcate holding) or their Participants/CDC Inveﬆor Account Services so that their revised certiﬁcate holding
proportions are considered by the Modaraba in all prospective dividend payouts, if any,

7.

Certiﬁcate holders seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate,
are requeﬆed to submit a valid tax exemption certiﬁcate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be
to the Share Regiﬆrar of Modaraba.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING
8.

Payment of Dividend through electronic mode (mandatory)
Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a liﬆed company to pay cash
dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled
shareholders. Therefore, all the certiﬁcate holders of Modaraba are hereby advised to provide dividend mandate of
their respective banks in the “Dividend Mandate Form” available on the website of Modaraba. Certiﬁcate holders
maintaining holding under Central Depository Syﬆem (CDS) are advised to submit their bank mandate information
directly to the relevant participant / CDC Inveﬆor Account Service. In the absence of bank account details or in case
of incomplete details, Modaraba will be conﬆrained to withhold the payment of cash dividend of those certiﬁcate
holders who have not provided the same. For more information, contact our Regiﬆrar, M/s C.K .Management
Associates (Private) Limited.

9.

Unclaimed Dividends and physical Modaraba Certiﬁcates
Certiﬁcate holders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividends or did not collect their physical Modaraba
certiﬁcates, are advised to contact our Share Regiﬆrar M/s C.K .Management Associates (Private) Limited, 404Trade Towers, Abdullah Haroon Road, Karachi, Phone : 021-35687839 to enquire about their unclaimed dividend or
pending Modaraba certiﬁcates.
Conversion of Physical Modaraba Certiﬁcates into Book-Entry Form:
As per requirement of Companies Act, 2017, all liﬆed companies are required to replace the Certiﬁcates held in
physical form with the Certiﬁcates to be issued in Book-Entry, all Certiﬁcate holders holding Certiﬁcates in physical
form are requeﬆed to convert their shares in Book-Entry Form in order to comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017. Certiﬁcate holders may contact the Modaraba’s Share Regiﬆrar to underﬆand the process
of conversion of Certiﬁcates held in physical form, into the Book-Entry Form.
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Regiﬆered Oﬃce: Ofﬁce # B, 5th Floor, Lakson Square Building # 1, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi.
Phone: 021-35630621, 35630623, 35630625, 35630626

